INDEPENDENT

(o)
' m 0 MARKET RCMWG Meeting No 7 —13 September 2012
OPERATOR

Reserve Capacity Mechanism Working Group

Minutes

Meeting No. 7

Location: IMO Boardroom
Level 17, 197 St Georges Terrace, Perth

Date: Thursday 13 September 2012
Time: Commencing at 2.10pm — 5.20pm
Attendees Class Comment ‘
Allan Dawson Chair
Suzanne Frame IMO
Andrew Sutherland Market Generator
Brad Huppatz Market Generator (Verve Energy)
Ben Tan Market Generator Left at 4.40 pm
Shane Cremin Market Generator
Wendy Ng Market Customer
Geoff Gaston Market Customer Proxy
Steve Gould Market Customer
Stephen MacLean Market Customer (Synergy)
Andrew Stevens Market Customer/Generator
Jeff Renaud Demand Side Management
Geoff Down Contestable Customer
Justin Payne Contestable Customer
Brendan Clarke System Management
Wana Yang Observer (Economic Regulation

Authority)
Paul Hynch Observer (Public Utilities Office) Left at 5:00 pm
Apologies Class Comment ‘
Also in attendance From Comment ‘
Richard Tooth Presenter (Sapere  Research

Group)
Mike Thomas Presenter (The Lantau Group)
Aditi Varma Minutes
Greg Ruthven Observer
Fiona Edmonds Observer
Jenny Laidlaw Observer
Natasha Observer




Cunningham

George Sproule Observer
Item Subject Action
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES / ATTENDANCE

The Chair opened the seventh meeting of the Reserve Capacity
Mechanism (RCM) Working Group (RCMWG) at 2:10pm.

The Chair welcomed the members in attendance and noted Mr
Patrick Peake’s apology.

MINUTES ARISING FROM MEETING 5
The following amendments were noted:
e On page 5, Mr Brad Huppatz requested the following change:

Mr Brad Huppatz noted Verve Energy’s support for the
dynamic regime but added that with increasing risk and
uncertainty must be balanced by a lowering of expected

refunds a—Market-Participant's—exposure—in—the market—will

Hnerease-

e On page 8, members asked for the following change:
Fhe-Chairnoted-that- the-members-agreed-that-the proposed
I o e | foacibl lation i
the-short—term-

Discussion ensued among members on decisions made on the
Reserve Capacity Price (Work Stream 1) in the previous meeting.
The following points were noted:

e Mr Ben Tan and Mr Stephen MacLean noted that the ensuing
email conversations after the last meeting indicated that a
common understanding on the issue of Reserve Capacity
Price had not been reached and that the effects of the recent
reduction in the Maximum Reserve Capacity Price (MRCP)
needed to be further assessed.

e Discussion ensued on whether this work-stream should be
opened for discussion again. Mr Shane Cremin noted that
members had discussed that there could be better solutions to
deal with the over-supply of capacity, but in the short term a
framework was needed to deal with the current problem.

e Mr Andrew Stevens queried if there was general agreement
on the fundamental framework of the model, not on the
numbers illustrated in it per se. Mr MacLean noted that
following his discussions with Mr Mike Thomas, the model
presented might not be practical in achieving the objective of
incentivising bilateral contracting. Mr Cremin noted that the
implications around bilateral contracting being further
incentivised required additional examination. He added that
there was a need for further discussion around the structural
framework which should be followed. Mr Stevens agreed with
Mr Cremin. Mr MacLean added that from the point of view of
retailers, retailers would like to hedge their risks by contracting
up to the amount of their liability and would not like to see
other transactions take place in the market that could impose
an extraneous cost to them.

Meeting Minutes




Mr Thomas observed that it was important that the members
divide the two questions: does the proposed solution improve
the current situation; and whether the proposed solution is the
most suitable option that the members would like to progress.
Mr Cremin noted that the working group needed a better
understanding of how the proposed solution would deliver in
the market. Mr MacLean observed that in the past, other more
complicated price reduction methodologies had been used to
deal with the excess capacity problem. He noted that if a
broader reform of the Reserve Capacity Mechanism was the
issue to be addressed, it might be useful to give some thought
to whether the RCMWG was the appropriate group to deal
with it.

The Chair observed that the IMO Board had laid out the terms
of reference for the RCMWG as addressing the problem of
excess capacity by using price as a signal for entry or exit of
capacity. He added that the IMO Board was aware of the
impact of the MRCP review on the market and had indicated
to Mr Thomas that a material change in MRCP may be
sufficient to address the oversupply issue. The Chair also
added that the recent Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(WACC) determination for Western Power would impact the
MRCP for 2016/17. Mr MacLean disagreed and added that
Synergy had offered a different proposal with fewer changes
suggesting that if a Market Participant made a bilateral
declaration in a Capacity Year, then the IMO should not pay
that Market Participant for that year. Members discussed the
pros and cons of Synergy’s proposal.

The Chair observed that after all the discussions; if the group
believed that a credible case for change could not be made,
then that would be reasonable advice to provide to the IMO
Board.

Mr MaclLean suggested that the RCMWG consider Mr
Cremin’s proposal for a broader review to be undertaken to
evaluate the RCM holistically. Mr Cremin noted that in his
opinion, the RCM was not entirely suitable in the Wholesale
Electricity Market. He added that issues around having an
unconstrained network, lack of locational signals, continued
use of old generation assets etc. were not being considered in
the current review. If those issues had to be dealt with, a new
working group may have to be created.

Some discussion ensued on the WACC determination used in
the MRCP review. The Chair also added that the IMO would
recalculate the MRCP with an updated WACC component and
present the results at the next RCMWG meeting.

Action Point: The IMO to publish amended minutes of RCMWG
meeting no.5 on the Market Web Site.

Action Point: The IMO to recalculate the MRCP with an updated
WACC component and present the results at the next RCMWG
meeting.

ACTIONS ARISING

Ms Suzanne Frame noted that Action Item 1(The Lantau Group to
investigate the options for implementing a dynamic capacity
refund mechanism and present to the RCMWG for discussion)
was on the agenda.

Meeting Minutes




She noted that Action Item 2(The IMO to include information on
the cost effectiveness of proposed solutions or harmonisation)
was in progress.

INDIVIDUAL RESERVE CAPACITY REQUIREMENT (IRCR)
(WORK STREAM 4)

The Chair invited Dr Richard Tooth to present his paper.

The following points of discussion were noted:

There was discussion among members on non-temperature
dependent loads and their behaviour in the market. Mr Geoff
Gaston observed that the IRCR could not affect market
behaviour because the Trading Intervals used for IRCR
calculations are not known by Market Customers even 6-8
months after a peak temperature event. If industrial loads
wanted to take advantage, they would have to start reducing
their consumption each time the temperature went above 35
degrees, because they would never know for sure what peak
intervals are being used for the IRCR calculation. This is
generally not possible for industrial loads. Mr MacLean added
that whereas in the past, the peak event used to occur in late
February, now temperatures are high almost throughout the
summer period, implying that customers would have to try and
reduce their demand over the entire summer period because
they do not have any indication of a peak event beforehand.
Discussion ensued on the potential of the peak moving more
towards occurring during the evening as more solar PV cells
connect to the grid, which might induce some
industrial/commercial loads to shut down early and take
advantage of a lower electricity bill.

On the topic of selection of peak Trading Intervals for IRCR
allocation, the members agreed to proposal 1 i.e., the peak
Trading Intervals selected for IRCR calculations would be
changed to be selected from Trading Days with the highest
peak demand rather than the highest daily consumption.

Ms Wendy Ng requested clarification on whether the scope of
this work included exploring alternative methodologies for
calculating IRCR. Dr Tooth answered that the scope was
limited to evaluating the current calculation of IRCR. Ms Ng
noted that there may be some potential to make the
calculation more real-time by aligning it with metering data.
She added that the IRCR could be calculated using a load
profile weighting mechanism similar to the methodology for
capacity refunds. Dr Tooth observed that IRCR was a division
of a pie among Market Customers and that any sort of change
to the methodology would result in winners and losers.

Following the presentation of proposal 2 (the number of
Trading Intervals for IRCR calculation is not modified) and 3
(there is no change to the use of the median value in the
IRCR calculation); the Chair asked members if there was
agreement with regards to presenting the three proposals as
advice from the working group to the IMO Board. Ms Ng noted
her support in the absence of any other analysis for
alternative methodologies for calculating the IRCR. Mr
MacLean noted that he was not convinced that other viable
options, such as annualising the capacity cost, did not exist.

On the relationship between Relevant Demand (RD) and

Meeting Minutes




IRCR, Mr Renaud asked for clarification on the definition of
gaming. He added that in his view gaming, to the extent that
RD and IRCR intervals overlap, would mean a customer
requesting a higher RD in an interval because of a
maintenance issue while simultaneously not accepting the
lower IRCR adjustment. He added that his position on the
issue was that the RD and IRCR intervals had no interaction
with each other because they were intended for different
purposes. He further added that he was supportive of a
change that removed the potential for double benefits
whenever there was overlap between RD and IRCR intervals.
Mr Renaud added that there should be a provision in the
Market Rules for adjustment to the IRCR when the Trading
Intervals coincide with the RD Trading Intervals.

In response to proposal 4 (i.e., consideration be given to
limiting the modifications to load values used in the RD
calculation whereby the modified RD values cannot exceed
the Associated Load’s IRCR Calculation of contribution to the
system peak load) Mr Renaud noted that the basis for
comparison with RD should be the uplifted IRCR, not the
unadjusted IRCR. He added that the unadjusted IRCR is
roughly 3800 MW whereas there were 5300 MW of Capacity
Credits.

Mr Brendan Clarke queried if there was any option to remove
the IRCR Trading Intervals from those selected in the RD
calculation. He added that there were 32 Trading Intervals
which could be eliminated from the RD calculation so that
there would be no chance of a double benefit being received.
Dr Tooth responded that this restriction would not prevent
gaming. Mr Renaud reiterated that in his opinion, the concern
with gaming the IRCR outside of RD Trading Intervals was a
broader question that was independent of the calculation of
RD. He stated that the concern with gaming IRCR was if there
was an incentive in the system to manipulate IRCR to one’s
personal benefit without providing a manifest benefit in
decreasing the load forecast and so reducing the amount of
capacity required. At this point, the Chair asked the members
for their opinion on a potential situation where a Market
Customer or a DSP would have more Capacity Credits to sell
based on its adjusted or uplifted IRCR. Mr Tan noted that this
perspective may change if the market had a capacity shortfall
rather than excess.

Mr Renaud further added that the debate was really about the
two extremes: one focussing on the contribution to the system
peak in the purest sense- the IRCR; and the other focussing
on a truly dynamic baseline approach which was related to the
amount of energy and capacity that a DSP could deliver when
System Management needed it. This was irrespective of what
the load did for the rest of the year. He observed that based
on the IMO adopting the philosophical position that you could
not sell what you did not buy, he could understand the
position that the RD should not be above the uplifted IRCR.

Mr MacLean proposed that the RD for a DSP should not
exceed the expected peak demand (as measured by the
IRCR for each load comprising the DSP). Mr Renaud
contested this on the grounds that DSPs were paid for
capacity on the basis of what they could deliver to the market
when needed whereas linking RD to IRCR would be an

Meeting Minutes




artificial linkage that does not relate to what the market is
paying for. Mr MacLean used the example of generators being
rated for their effectiveness at an ambient temperature of 41
degrees whereas RD was calculated across four summer
months, not the absolute peak days. He added that the
equivalent would be to relate the RD to the 12 Trading
Intervals used for IRCR as that would link it with the peak
days. Mr Renaud noted that this was an issue related to the
RD methodology not its linkage with IRCR.

e The Chair observed that it would be useful to conduct some
analysis on the number of RD Trading Intervals that coincide
with IRCR Trading Intervals in the past 12 months to assess
the significance of the issue.

e Dr Steve Gould questioned when the application for an
adjustment for maintenance is made by a DSP; whether prior
to the notification of the relevant Trading Intervals or after. Mr
Ruthven responded that some were made before the
notification and some after. Dr Gould noted that in his opinion,
the analogy for this adjustment was the application for a
Planned Outage which is made in advance. He questioned
why the notification of the adjustment could not be made in
advance without knowledge of what the weather was on that
particular day. Mr Renaud noted that that would involve a
fairly large administrative exercise in terms of proactively
filling applications for as many as 500 loads to assess their list
of maintenance outages and submitting it to the IMO. The
Chair also added that generator Planned Outages are
currently managed by System Management and the number
of generators was much lower than the number of loads.

Action Point: The IMO and Sapere Research Group to conduct
analysis on the number of RD Trading Intervals that coincide with
IRCR Trading Intervals in the past 12 months to assess the
significance of the issue of gaming.

5 RESERVE CAPACITY FORECASTING METHODOLOGY

The Chair invited Mr Ruthven to make his presentation.

The following points of discussion were noted:

e Mr Cremin observed that the forecasts from the IMO in
relation to block loads connecting to the grid were different
from that of Western Power. He queried whether there was
consultation between the two entities on these forecasts. Mr
Tan also queried why the forecasts were so different. The
Chair responded that the IMO evaluated each project
individually with regard to its likelihood of connecting to the
grid and shared these details with Western Power.

e The Chair noted that the forecasting methodology was
currently under a five-year review and ACIL Tasman had been
engaged to prepare a draft report that was going to be
published the following Monday (17 September 2012).

6. MOVING TO A DYNAMIC CAPACITY REFUND REGIME

The Chair invited Mr Mike Thomas to make his presentation. The
following discussion points were noted:

e Mr MacLean queried Mr Thomas if a different overnight
capacity refund charge should be considered when the

Meeting Minutes




variation in load is considerably less and the need for
substantial reserve margin does not exist. Mr Thomas
responded that this should be one of the questions to
consider.

e There was some discussion among members on the effect of
dynamic refunds on the energy prices and that ultimately the
impact of dynamic refunds may get built into bilateral
contracts.

e Discussion ensued on the slope of the refund exposure. Mr
Thomas noted that the proposed option for consideration of
recycling of refunds would reduce the burden of penalties by
giving both a reward and a penalty simultaneously. Mr Cremin
noted that the recycling approach also reinforced the value
proposition of different facilities. He observed that ideally an
inferior generator should be liable to pay more refunds. This
would further incentivise a mix of reliable, more efficient
plants. Mr Stevens added that the incentive or the reward
should be there to incentivise generators to run. His opinion
was that at the moment, generators react to the high risk in
the market associated with refund exposure. Mr MacLean
noted that the real test of the implementation of a dynamic
refunds regime would be how bilateral contracts get re-written.

e The Chair noted that the discussions indicated that these
ideas required further consideration. He added that more
analysis should be done on increasing certain refund factors
to increase exposure during more critical periods. Mr
MaclLean added that more detail was needed on steepening
the slope and concentrating more refund risk into peak
months. Mr Sutherland added that the curve showing capacity
factor, utilisation factor and refunds paid should reflect the
actual scenario.

e Ms Wana Yang provided a comment on availability of
generating plants in the market. She observed that plants
which have high rates of Planned Outages should be included
in the review of the refund mechanism. The Chair clarified that
the IMO Board had evaluated particular clauses in the Market
Rules which allowed the IMO to not allocate Capacity Credits
to facilities which had a combined Forced and Planned
Outage rate of greater than 30% over the past 36 months. He
added that the IMO Board had considered allocating Capacity
Credits to those facilities because of various security and
reliability reasons. He further added that the IMO Board had
requested an evaluation of these clauses to ensure that they
provide incentives to improve performance and to expose
poorly performing plants to refunds if they were above a
certain threshold of outage rates. He noted that the IMO
would embark upon this piece of work over the next few
months.

Action Point: The Lantau Group to conduct further analysis on
various issues and present a preferred proposed dynamic refund
regime.

CLOSED

The Chair thanked the members and declared the meeting closed
at 5.20 pm.

Meeting Minutes




	/

